
Document last changed: 3/10/2009 9:30 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, March 16, 2009 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
5:00 p.m. Moyock Central Waste Water System   
6:00 p.m. Hangar Rental and Concession License Agreement   
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Proclamation for Girl Scout Month   

Item 4 David Hinnent, Department of Transportation, update on 
railroad crossings   

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-60 Albemarle & Associates:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance to establish an Offshore Island Limited Access 
Residential (OI) zoning district. This district would allow for the 
development of lots for which the only means of access is through 
public trust waters. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map 
from Limited Service Area to Full Service Area and to amend Water 
Quality Policy (WQ5) to promote low impact development 
techniques.  The property is located on Fisher Landing Road, 
Jarvisburg, Tax Map 96, Parcel 29C, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 7 Consideration and Approval  Hangar Rental and Concession 
License Agreement 

1



Document last changed: 3/10/2009 9:30 AM 

 
Item 8 Consent Agenda: 

1. Budget Amendments 
2. Request to destroy check carbons from 2005 
3. John E Bassett, Inc CO#1, Corporate Hangar and Hangar 

Taxiway 
4. Request for disposal of Financial records per record retention 

schedule 
5. Approval of March 2, 2009, Minutes 

Item 9 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 10 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



Girl Scout Month Proclamation 
 
 
WHEREAS, March marks the 97th anniversary of Girl Scouts of the USA, 
founded by Juliette Gordon Low in 1912 in Savannah, Georgia, and 
 
WHEREAS, throughout its distinguished history, Girl Scouting has inspired 
millions of girls and women with the highest ideals of courage, confidence, and 
character; and, 
 
WHEREAS, through the Girl Scout leadership experience girls develop the skills 
and lessons that will serve them a lifetime so that they may contribute to their 
communities; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Girl Scouting takes an active role in increasing girls’ awareness of 
the opportunities available to them today in math, science, sports, technology 
and other fields that can expand their horizons; and, 
 
WHEREAS, more than 3 million current Girl Scout members nationwide will be 
celebrating 97 years of this American tradition, with nearly 50 million women who 
are former Girl Scouts and living proof of the impact of this amazing Movement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners do hereby applaud the commitment Girl Scouting and the Girl 
Scout Council of Colonial Coast has made to support the leadership 
development of  girls and proudly proclaim the month of March as Girl Scout 
Month. 
 
ATTEST:      ______________________ 
       J. Owen Etheridge 
__________________    Chairman 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 

3



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben E. Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Date: February 25, 2009 
 
Re:  PB 08-60 Island Lots 
 
 
 
Albemarle and Associates is requesting a text amendment to the UDO to establish an 
Offshore Island Limited Access Residential (OI) zoning district (Option 1).  This would 
allow for the limited development of lots for which the only means of access is through 
public trust waters.  In other words, this request would create a zoning district that 
permits construction activities on a tract of land that does not abut a public or private 
street, and is only accessible by water. 
 
As an alternative, staff is recommending the consideration of a text amendment that 
simply allows the development of island lots within the existing zoning and subdivision 
ordinances (Option 2).  Rather than create a separate zoning district for island lot 
development, this option would allow the owner of an island to receive a building permit 
under an exemption clause.  At their February 10 meeting, the Planning Board motioned 
to approve this option with additional language requiring a minimum lot size of eight 
acres and the availability of private parking on the mainland for each dwelling.  
However, due to a tie vote, the official action was for a recommendation of denial. 
 
Previously in June of 2005 and September of 2007, text amendment requests with 
similar objectives were submitted for consideration.  In both instances, the Planning 
Board recommended approval.  The original amendment request in 2005 was 
subsequently withdrawn and no action was taken by the Board of Commissioners.  The 
2007 amendment request was heard and denied by the Board of Commissioners at 
their January 22, 2008 meeting. 
 
Planning staff did recommend denial of the 2005 request and pointed out that if 
approved, the amendment would apply countywide and create increased pressure for 
the provision of County services (there are 21 privately owned islands off the Currituck 
Mainland, which may or may not be developable).  The following reasons were 
specifically given for denial at that time: 

4



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 2 of 12 

• County services will not be available for lots only accessible through public trust 
waters.  This includes Fire, EMS, Law Enforcement, Public School 
Transportation, etc. 

• Non-availability of public utilities such as water, power, telephone, cable 
television, etc. 

• There is no efficient means to provide solid waste disposal. 
 
The 2007 request generated many of the same concerns as the 2005 request, and as a 
result, planning staff met with other County departments regarding the provision of 
services.  This meeting was attended by the applicant, Planning Staff, and 
representatives of the Sheriff’s Office, Emergency Management, and Emergency 
Medical Services.   
 
Several concerns were raised at the meeting, during which it was decided to expand 
upon the existing draft while relying on the legal guidance of the County Attorney.  
Following the initial meeting it was determined by the Attorney that the County is not 
legally liable if there is an inability to provide timely services.  It was also recommended 
that the text amendment include a provision requiring a notification or waiver related to 
the possible inadequate provision of services.   
 
In contrast to previous amendment requests, this proposal submitted by the applicant 
takes a different approach by creating a zoning district that provides for the 
development of island lots.  While the procedure by which the development of island 
lots occurs is different, it still generates the same outcome...the development of lots that 
are only accessible by public trust waters. 
 
From an administration standpoint, planning staff prefers an amendment request similar 
to the one filed in 2007, but with additional detail regarding the provision of county 
services.  The creation of a new zoning district is cumbersome and would still require a 
rezoning application to be processed.  If the Board supports the allowance of island lots, 
it seems more appropriate to handle this in the existing zoning and subdivision 
ordinances.  Provided of course the applicant is able to resolve any issues expressed 
by the Sheriff’s Office, Emergency Management, and Emergency Medical Services. 
 
Finally, an additional meeting was held with the applicant and county service provision 
departments on December 3, 2008.  Concerns expressed at this meeting included a 
waiver of county services, the possibility of higher density development, and dredging 
associated with pier access. 
 
What follows are two draft versions of the text amendment as submitted by the 
applicant.  Option 1 creates an island zoning district and option 2 creates an exemption 
to the street access requirement.  Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to 
contact me at 232-6029.   

5



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 3 of 12 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (February 2009 meeting) 
Mr. West stated if there were no county services on these islands and they were to build 
on the island, then a county building inspector would have to go there to inspect the 
property.  
 
Mr. Woody stated the applicant would be responsible for providing transportation for the 
building inspector as well as other county departments.  
 
Mr. Overton stated what they are asking for in this text amendment is for individuals 
who own an island to have the right to be able to request a building permit. Mr. Overton 
stated this does not give them a building permit, it does not give them the right to 
“develop an island”, rather it is restoring their right to request a building permit.  
 
Ms. Robbins asked how septic systems would be pumped. 
 
Mr. Overton stated these are issues that would need to be worked out by the applicant. 
Mr. Overton stated that other coastal counties that do allow dwellings to be built on 
islands, these same challenges exist there as well and these challenges are addressed.   
 
The planning board discussed parking available on the mainland for each dwelling, the 
potential to create a major or minor subdivision on an island, creating a unique zoning 
district vs. creating exceptions to the requirements for street access and density. 
 
Mr. Overton stated that if the owners could exercise their right to request a building 
permit, then all zoning requirements would be applicable as it is with the mainland.  
 
Mr. Woody estimated that 90% of the potentially developable islands in the county are 
zoned Residential (R).  
 
Mr. Overton stated they have had several meetings with the sheriff and various 
emergency departments. Their concern has not been one of providing services but a 
concern of liability of timelessness.   
 
Mr. Bell stated his concern is with the environmental impact it will have on the islands.  
 
Mr. Clark stated he is concerned with changing the character of Currituck County by 
changing the zoning district to OI which would allow the possible development of these 
islands and set a precedent for the development off other islands in Currituck Sound.   
 
Mr. Overton stated that this request is only asking if you owned an island that you have 
the ability to ask for a building permit.  
 
Mr. West asked if the applicant would put a waiver that there is a density of 1 building 
per island.  
 
Mr. Overton stated he would prefer the density of 1 per 5 acres.   
 

6



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 4 of 12 

 
Mr. Woody stated that density related to CAMA wetlands cannot be used for lot area, so 
the minimum lot size would have to be exclusive of any CAMA wetlands.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval of Option 2 with the addition of parking 
available on the mainland for each dwelling unit and a 5 acre minimum lot size.  Mr. 
West amended Mr. Kovacs motion and changed the 5 acres to 8 acres minimum lot 
size.  Mr. Kovacs seconded the motion. Ayes: Mr. West, Mr. Midgette, Ms. Wilson, and 
Mr. Kovacs.  Nays:  Mr. Bell, Mr. Clark, Mr. Etheridge, and Ms. Robbins.  Motion failed 
because it did not receive the majority of the votes.  
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (December 2008 meeting) 
Mr. Midgette asked Mr. Webb if the density issue had been discussed with the 
applicant. 
 
Mr. Webb stated yes. 
 
The Planning Board discussed density, pier access, parking on the mainland, dredging, 
and a waiver for county services.  
 
Mr. Hain addressed questions from the board on the above issues. Mr. Hain stated they 
would like to create a new zoning district at this point.   
 
The Planning Board talked about tabling this proposal until they can hold a workshop 
with the county commissioners so some of the issues can be worked out. 
 
Mr. Hain stated his client would want to go forward with this request and not for it to be 
tabled.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to tabled PB 08-60 Island Lots until the Planning Board has a 
workshop meeting with the county commissioners.  Ms. Turner seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

7



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 5 of 12 

ALBEMARLE & ASSOCIATES ISLAND LOTS 
PB 08-60 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
OPTION 1 

 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Chapter 8: Parking, and Chapter 9: 
Infrastructure, to establish an Offshore Island Limited Access Residential (OI) zoning 
district. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Section 2.2 Base Zoning Districts is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
Section 2.2 Base Zoning Districts 
Base zoning districts are created to provide comprehensive land use regulations 
throughout Currituck County. There are 11 12 base zoning districts that provide for a 
variety of uses that are appropriate to the character of the areas in which they are 
located. For the purpose of this ordinance, Currituck County is hereby divided into the 
following base zoning districts. These districts shall comply with all of the general and 
specific requirements of this ordinance. 
 
A: Agricultural District 
RA: Mixed Residential District 
R: Basic Residential District 
RO1: Outer Banks Standard Residential District 
RO2: Outer Banks Limited Access Residential District 
RR: Residential Recreational District 
GB: General Business District 
C: Commercial District 
LBH: Limited Business Hotels Allowed District 
LM: Light Manufacturing District 
HM: Heavy Manufacturing District 
OI: Offshore Island Limited Access Residential District 
 
 
2.2.2 Residential Districts Established 
Each of these districts is designed and intended to secure for the persons who reside there 
a comfortable, healthy, safe, and pleasant environment in which to live, sheltered from 
incompatible and disruptive activities: 
 
G.  Offshore Island Limited Access Residential (OI) District: The Offshore Island 

Limited Access Residential (OI) district is designed to accommodate low density 
residential development (other than mobile homes) within the portion of the 

8



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 6 of 12 

Currituck County deemed by the County Commissioners not to be accessible by a 
road.  Due to the county’s inability to provide timely public services to areas not 
directly accessible by road, the following requirement shall apply to all 
development activities: 

 
1. A notification shall be placed on the final plat and included in any recorded 

deed that county services are limited and may not be available in a timely 
manner.  The notification language must be approved by the County Attorney 
prior to recordation. 

 
 
Item 2: That Section 2.5 Permitted Uses Table is amended by adding the OI zoning district 
to the table and including the following uses: 
 
Use OI 
Accessory Structures (residential) Z 
Accessory Uses Z 
Hunting & Fishing Lodges Z 
Single Family, detached-1 unit per lot Z 
Temporary Emergency, Construction, & Repair Residences Z 
Civil Defense Operations S 
Law Enforcement & Emergency Services S 
Boat Ramps (publicly owned) S 
Boat Ramps (privately owned) Z/C 
Campgrounds, Recreation (public) S 
Outdoor Recreational Facilities (private) S 
Outdoor Recreational Facilities (public) Z 
Agricultural Uses (nonexempt without livestock Z 
Agricultural Uses (nonexempt with livestock) Z 
Adaptive Reuse of Historic Properties C 
Telecommunications Towers (50 feet or less) Z 
Telecommunications Towers (non-commercial amateur 100 feet or less) C 
Towers, Other Including Water (50 feet or less) Z 
Utility Facilities  Z 
Wind Energy Facilities, Small System  Z 
Wind Energy Facilities, Large Scale  S 
Wind Energy Facilities, Utility Scale S 
 
 
Item 3: That Section 2.6 General Lot Provisions is amended by adding the following 
underlined language: 
 
2.6.1 Street Access 
No building, structure, or use of land for other than agricultural purposes shall be 
established on a lot which does not abut a state maintained street or road or private 
street as permitted in these regulations, other than lots in the RO2 and OI zoning 
districts, except as provided below: 

9



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 7 of 12 

 
C.  Every lot shall have access to it that is sufficient to afford a reasonable means of 

ingress and egress for emergency vehicles as well as for all those likely to need or 
desire access to the property in its intended use which access shall be no less than 20 
feet in width except within the OI District. With respect to lots within the R02 District, 
what is a reasonable means of ingress and egress" shall be determined in light of the 
fact that no state maintained road extends into this district and that access to all lots in 
this district is generally available only to 4 wheel drive vehicles and no access shall be 
created in the RO2 District which is less than 20 feet in width.  With respect to lots 
within the OI District, what is a "reasonable means of ingress and egress" shall be 
determined in light of the fact that no roads extend into this district and that access to 
all lots in this district is available only by boat. 

 
 
Item 4: That Section 2.7 Dimensional Requirements is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
2.7.1 Dimensional Tables 
The following tables depict the allowable lot size, width, coverage, setbacks and height for 
a given use. The table should be used as a guide for development, taking into 
consideration the footnotes that are referenced. In some cases a specific use may be 
required to meet a specific requirement as set forth in Chapter 3. The first table; Table of 
Area, Separation and Height, provides information specific to underlying, or base, zoning 
districts as described in Chapter 2, while the second table; Table of Overlay District Area 
and Width, provides information exclusive to Overlay Districts as defined in Chapter 4, 
which also governs lot size and width.  
 
The densities set forth in this Section are permissible only if and to the extent that water 
and sewer facilities are or will be made available to serve the proposed density in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 9 of this Ordinance (Infrastructure) or if water 
and sewer facilities are not available to serve the proposed density, then such density shall 
be limited by the availability of conventional individual water wells and septic systems, 
being approved for the particular lot or parcel. In addition, nothing in this Section shall be 
interpreted as authorizing a type of use (e.g., multi-family) in a district (e.g., R, RO1, or 
RO2, or OI) where such uses are not permitted under the Permitted Uses Table. 
 
 
 

10



  

 
 

 Minimum Lot Size (acres and square feet) Min. Setbacks (feet)(7) 
Individual Lots & 

Minor 
Subdivisions (up 

to 5 lots) 

Conventional 
Subdivisions 
(up to 40 lots) 

Conservation 
Subdivisions  

(41  lots or more)  
Other 

 

Max. Lot Coverage 
(percentage) (9) 

Zone 
Lot  
Size 

(1) 

Lot  
Width 

(2) 

Lot  
Size 

(3) 

Lot  
Width 

(8) 

Lot  
Size 

(4)  
Lot  

Width 
Lot  
Size 

Lot 
Width 

< 
10,000 
sq. ft. 

10,000
– 

19,000 
sq. ft. 

> 
19,000 
sq. ft. 

Floor 
Area 
Ratio 

(10) 
Front  

 
Side 

  
Rear 

Max. 
Height 
(feet) 

A(5) 3 acres 125 3 acres(6) 125 20,000 100 3 acres 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 
RA 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 
R 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 

RO1 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 

RO2 120,000 125 120,000(6) 125 1.5 
acres 100 120,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 

RR 40,000 125 40,000(6) 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 
GB - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 
C - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 

LBH - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 
LM - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 
HM - - - - - - 40,000 125 65 .400 20 15 25 35 
OI 40,000 125 40,000 125 20,000 100 40,000 125 45 35 30 - 20 15 25 35 

11



  

Item 5: That Section 8.2 Parking Area Dimensions is amended by adding the following 
underlined language: 
 
8.2.1 Parking Space Dimensions 
All districts and uses except for RO1 and RO2 single family and two family residences, and 
OI single family residences, shall meet the following dimensions: 
 
 
Item 6: That Section 8.3 Number of Parking Spaces Required is amended by adding the 
following underlined language: 
 
Section 8.3 Number of Parking Spaces Required 
 
A. All developments in all zoning districts, excluding the OI district, shall provide the 

number of parking spaces, as specified in the Table of Parking Requirements. 
 
 
Item 7: That Section 9.1 Street Standards is amended by adding the following underlined 
language: 
 
9.1.6 Required Deceleration Lanes 
 
C. All residential subdivisions proposing to have over 40 lots, and as recommended by 

NCDOT, all non-residential subdivisions that have access onto major arterials (US 
158, NC 168, NC 34, NC 136, NC 615, and NC 12) shall be required to install a 
deceleration turn lane in accordance with NCDOT standards, except in the RO2 and 
OI districts. 

 
 
9.1.8.2 Street Design Requirements 
 
D.  Except in the RO2 and OI districts, all proposed subdivision streets shall have 

direct access to an improved street that meets NCDOT design and construction 
standards or one that has been accepted for maintenance by NCDOT; 

 
 
9.1.8.5 Sidewalks 
Within all residential subdivisions over 19 lots, the subdivider shall be required to install 
concrete sidewalks along one side of all proposed streets in accordance with NCDOT 
regulations, except in the RO2 and OI districts. 
 
 
Item 8: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 

12



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 10 of 12 

 
 
Item 9: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 

13



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 11 of 12 

ALBEMARLE & ASSOCIATES ISLAND LOTS 
PB 08-60 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
OPTION 2 

 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Section 2.6.1 Street Access, to allow 
zoning permits to be issued on lots for which the only means of access is through public 
trust waters. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Section 2.6.1 Street Access is amended by adding the following underlined 
language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
2.6.1 Street Access 
No building, structure, or use of land for other than agricultural purposes shall be 
established on a lot which does not abut a state maintained street or road or private 
street as permitted in these regulations, other than lots in the RO2 zoning district, 
except as provided below: 
 
C. A permit for construction may be allowed on a lot that does not abut a public or 

private street, provided the lot is on an island completely surrounded by water and 
its only means of access is through public trust waters.  Notification shall be placed 
on the final plat and/or issued with any permit for construction indicating that county 
services are limited and may not be available in a timely manner. 

 
D. Every lot shall have access to it that is sufficient to afford a reasonable means of 

ingress and egress for emergency vehicles as well as for all those likely to need or 
desire access to the property in its intended use.  which This access shall be no 
less than 20 feet in width. 

 
1. With respect to lots within the R02 District, what is a "reasonable means of 

ingress and egress" shall be determined in light of the fact that no state 
maintained road extends into this district and that access to all lots in this 
district is generally available only to 4 wheel drive vehicles and no access shall 
be created in the RO2 District which is less than 20 feet in width.   

 
2. With respect to island lots completely surrounded by public trust waters, what 

is a "reasonable means of ingress and egress" shall be determined in light of 
the fact that lots on an island are not accessible by a public or private street 
and that access to all lots is available only by boat. 

 
 
 

14



 

PB 08-60 
Island Lots Text Amendment 

Page 12 of 12 

Item 2: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 3: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 

15



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Cc: Charlan Owens, AICP 
 DCM Elizabeth City District Planner 
 
Date: February 26, 2009 
 
Re:  PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson Land Use Plan Amendment  
 
 
 
Eddie Valdivieso is requesting an amendment to the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from Limited Service 
area to Full Service area.  Staff is also recommending a change to Water Quality Policy 
(WQ5) to properly promote low impact development techniques. 
 
As required by the Coastal Area Management Act (CAMA), the Board of 
Commissioners must approve a local resolution of adoption which includes findings that 
demonstrate this amendment is consistent with the policy objectives of the Plan.  
Additionally, the County must demonstrate the amendment will not adversely affect the 
provision of services and infrastructure.  Once the appropriate findings and local 
resolution of adoption are approved, the amendment will then be considered by the 
Coastal Resources Commission (CRC) for formal certification. 
 
Enclosed please find the following information: 

• map of the proposed amendment area (page 2) 
• case analysis for Full Service area request and addendum for Policy WQ5 (pages 3 - 9) 
• meeting minutes of the Planning Board (pages 10 - 11) 
• local resolution of adoption and findings of plan consistency (page 12) 
• Land Use Plan amendments (pages 13 - 14) 
• supplementary information submitted by the applicant (new pages 1 - 33) 

 
This request is tentatively scheduled to be considered by the CRC at their quarterly 
April meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me at 232-6029.

16



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 2 of 14 

 

17



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 3 of 14 

CASE ANALYSIS:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
March 16, 2009 

Land Use Plan Amendment  
PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 

 
 
 
TYPE OF REQUEST:  To amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to designate 

approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from 
Limited Service Area to Full Service Area. 

 
LOCATION:  Located on Fisher Landing Road, Jarvisburg,    
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 96, Parcel 29C, Poplar Branch Township 
  
OWNER:     Jennifer W. Pittman 
  Susan F. & Thomas C. Williamson, Jr. 
  5105 Glen Forest Drive  
  Raleigh, NC 27612 
 
AGENT/APPLICANT: Quible & Associates, PC 
    PO Drawer 870 
    Kitty Hawk, NC 27948 
 
CURRENT LAND USE  
CLASSIFICATION: Limited Service Area 
 
PROPOSED LAND USE   
CLASSIFICATION: Full Service Area 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A) 

 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  
 Land Use LUP Classification 
NORTH: Undeveloped, Sparse Residential Conservation 
SOUTH: Undeveloped, Residential Limited Service 
EAST: Undeveloped Limited Service 
WEST: North River NA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 4 of 14 

LAND USE PLAN  
ANALYSIS:  
 

Existing Map Classification-  Limited Service  
The purpose of the Limited Services Area class is to provide for primarily 
residential development at low densities. While low-density development 
may continue to locate in these areas, it is recognized that soil limitations, 
flood prone areas, and a lack of infrastructure and services may prevent 
these areas from ever reaching an urban level of development.  
 
Despite the overall low density of these areas, efforts should be made to 
encourage clusters of residential uses to preserve open space and to 
provide for a sense of a "community". Base development density should 
be 1 unit per acre but could be increased to 1.5 units per acre through 
overlay zoning depending upon whether service facilities are in place or 
planned and the potential impact on the surrounding community.  In the 
same instances where slightly higher density is considered appropriate a 
moderate mix of housing types such as semi-detached would also be 
considered reasonable. 
 
With respect to nonresidential uses, it is essential that the existing 
community character be preserved.  Design criteria should be established 
to ensure that commercial development protects and preserves the 
existing community in scale, architectural style, materials, landscaping, 
and site design.  In general, neighborhood commercial uses are more 
appropriate than large scale commercial complexes.  However, business 
designed to serve the tourist industry such as small gift shops or agri-
tourism related uses should not be prohibited provided the character and 
intensity of the use is in keeping with the character of the surrounding 
area.   

Proposed Map Classification-  Full Service 
Areas designated as Full Service are those parts of the county that are 
preferred for community centers.  A broad range of infrastructure and 
service investments have been provided or will be made available by the 
public and/or private sectors. Infrastructure investments may include, for 
example, community level or centralized water, parks, schools, fire and 
rescue facilities. 
 
With respect to residential development, base development density is 
contemplated to be 2 units per acre but could be increased to 3-4 units 
per acre through overlay zoning depending upon services available and 
the potential impact on the surrounding area.  A greater diversity in 
housing types (i.e. semi-detached, attached, multi-family) would be 
considered appropriate in the Full Service areas. 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 5 of 14 

With respect to nonresidential uses, it is essential that the existing 
community character be preserved.  Design criteria should be established 
to ensure that commercial development protects and preserves the 
existing community in scale, architectural style, materials, landscaping, 
and site design.  Nonresidential uses may include clusters of businesses 
serving the immediate area and, where appropriate, a more extensive 
market territory. 

 
Jarvisburg Sub-Area – The policy emphasis of the Jarvisburg Sub- Area 
is to allow the area to accommodate quality residential development at 
low densities while preserving the rural landscape between 
developments. Similar to the Grandy area, but at a lower overall density, 
new residential development should be encouraged to locate in compact, 
village like clusters, preferably near existing, non-agricultural activities 
and services.  

 
SUPPORTIVE POLICIES 
 
POLICY PA1: Public access to the sound and ocean waters of 
Currituck County is essential to the quality of life of residents and 
visitors, as well as the economy of the area. The County supports 
the establishment of ADDITIONAL PUBLIC AND PRIVATE 
ACCESS opportunities to the waters of Currituck County. 
 
POLICY PA5: PUBLIC AND PRIVATE MARINAS offering access 
to area waters should be encouraged when developed in 
accordance with the CAMA specific use standards for marinas 
(i.e. docks for more than 10 vessels). Marinas shall not be 
approved, however, that are incompatible with nearby land uses 
or whose designs fail to meet the environmental quality and 
development standards of the County’s Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

 
POLICY PA6: MARINAS IN UPLAND LOCATIONS generally shall 
be preferred over marinas in open water, thereby better 
preserving the visual appearance of the shoreline as well as 
avoiding the “consumption” of available public trust surface 
waters. 
 
POLICY ED1: NEW AND EXPANDING INDUSTRIES AND 
BUSINESSES should be especially encouraged that: 1) diversify 
the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly skilled labor 
force, and (3) are compatible with the environmental quality and 
natural amenity-based economy of Currituck County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 6 of 14 

UNSUPPORTIVE POLICIES 
 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to 
occur at densities appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND 
DENSITY FACTORS shall include whether the development is 
within an environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of 
sewage treatment available to the site, the adequacy of 
transportation facilities providing access to the site, and the 
proximity of the site to existing and planned urban services.  For 
example, projects falling within the Full Services areas of the 
Future Land Use Map would be permitted a higher density 
because of the availability of infrastructure as well as similarity to 
the existing development pattern. 
 
POLICY TR11: ACCESS TO HIGHER INTENSITY 
DEVELOPMENT shall generally not be permitted through an area 
of lower intensity development. For example, access to a multi-
family development, a major park facility or other large traffic 
generator shall not be permitted through a local street serving a 
single-family residential neighborhood. 
 
POLICY AG3: County ACTIONS CONCERNING 
INFRASTRUCTURE (e.g. schools, parks, and utilities) and 
regulations shall serve to direct new development first to targeted 
growth areas near existing settlements identified as Full Service 
Areas on the Future Land Use Map, rather than “leapfrogging” to 
locations in the midst of farmland and greenspace identified as 
Rural and Conservation areas on the Future Land Use Map.   
 
POLICY ML1: Currituck County recognizes the particular interest 
of residents and property owners in the Mainland Area in 
PRESERVING FARMLAND AND OPEN SPACE. The County 
shall exercise diligence in applying policies, plans and actions that 
will encourage compact growth and the preservation of farmland 
and open space in the Mainland Area. 
 

CAMA LAND  
SUITABILITY: According to the land suitability analysis included in the Land Use 

Plan, the site is primarily classified as low (approximately 18.1 
acres) and least (approximately 15.33 acres) suitable for 
development. There are limited amounts of the site classified as 
medium (approximately 10.8 acres) and high (approximately 13.5 
acres) suitability. 

 
 The land suitability analysis is a process for identifying land that is 

most suitable for development.  It ranks land from least to most 
suitable for development based on characteristics such as soil 
septic suitability, proximity to water lines, presence of wetlands, 
etc.   

 
 

21



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 7 of 14 

PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The site is located within the Jarvisburg Elementary School 

District. The Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department provides 
fire protection for this area. Public water is not available to this 
site. The nearest water line stubs off of Grandy Road 
approximately 2,000 feet eastward on Fisher Landing Road.     

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The site is accessible by vehicle from Fisher Landing Road and by 

boat from the North River. 
 
FLOOD ZONE: Approximately 38 acres of the site are located in a Flood Zone AE 

(7) and approximately 2 acres are located in a Shaded “X” Flood 
Zone.   

 
WETLANDS: Approximately 19.31 acres of wetlands are located on the site.   
 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

primarily suitable soils (approximately 25 acres). The rest of the 
site is mostly comprised of non-suitable soils (approximately 20.4 
acres).  There are limited amounts of marginal (9 acres) soils. 

 
STAFF 
ANALYSIS:    The staff have the following comments and concerns regarding 

the proposed Land Use Plan Amendment: 
 

The Land Use Policies contained in the Land Use Plan are to be 
viewed as official policy positions of Currituck County government 
once adopted. As such, the policies should remain substantially 
unchanged over time. Frequent changes to the policies would 
undermine their effectiveness in achieving intended planning and 
management objectives. The policies are designed to maintain a 
consistent and predictable direction for County government 
decisions over a period of several years. They further provide a 
basis for future decisions regarding growth and development, 
capital improvements, provision of County services, environmental 
protection, intergovernmental planning and cooperation, and other 
related matters. 

 
• The subject property is currently located in an area designated 

as Limited Service by the Future Land Use Map.  There are 
Full Service areas both to the north and south.  However, 
these areas are more than a mile in either direction.  
Amending this property to allow for the Full Service 
designation could encourage a “leapfrogging” style of 
development instead of encouraging development in targeted 
growth areas.       

 
 
 
 

22



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 8 of 14 

• Additional area designated as Full Service could allow for 
expansion of commercial/retail areas. This could result in 
additional neighborhood serving commercial areas and a net-
gain for Currituck County in tax generation and job creation.  

 
If the Board of Commissioners is inclined to recommend approval 
of this request, staff suggests the following be considered: 
 
• Future development proposals for the subject property must 

maintain public access, public boat launching, and parking 
facilities to the North River (Policies PA1, PA2, PA5, ML3). 
 

• Any future marina proposal shall participate and become a 
Certified Clean Marina in the North Carolina Clean Marina 
program (Policy PA7). 

 
• In an effort to preserve water quality and natural habitat, 

priority should be given to the retention and preservation of 
wetland areas.  It is recommended that no development, land 
disturbing, or logging activities occur in areas designated as 
wetlands. (Policies ES2, WQ 5, WQ 6, ML1) 

 
• Future development proposals for the subject property must 

demonstrate that water quality is not adversely impacted.  The 
use of Low Impact Development (LID) techniques and wetland 
preservation should be given high priority.  In addition when 
developing near the shoreline, precedence should be given to 
“soft” stabilization approaches including but not limited to 
preservation of existing vegetation, creation of natural, living 
shorelines for areas needing stabilization, and establishment 
of vegetative buffers (Policies ES4, WQ3, WQ6, and 
Jarvisburg Sub-Area description). 
 
 
 

23



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 9 of 14 

STAFF ADDENDUM 
 
 
The Planning Staff is also recommending an amendment to Policy WQ5 of the adopted Land 
Use Plan.  During the course of implementing the Plan, staff has determined this policy is being 
interpreted in a manner that may be ineffective in achieving its intended goals.  The policy 
currently reads as follows: 
 

POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE 
SITE, including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be 
encouraged. COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS shall not be 
considered part of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot 
size or development density. Open space developments shall be encouraged to 
REDUCE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREAS associated with new development 
and redevelopment. 

 
The intent of the policy is to protect the natural features of a site and promote water quality.  
This policy also proposes a net density for development projects, which is inconsistent with 
current county regulations that allow the limited inclusion of 404 and 401 wetlands in density 
determinations.  It is important to note that the corresponding section of the LUP Action Plan 
and Implementation Schedule does not recommend the implementation of a net density 
calculation...rather it provides the county amend the UDO to allow incentives for development 
buffers and incorporate low impact development concepts. 
 
Considering the intent of Policy WQ5, staff does not feel a density calculation is an effective 
means of promoting water quality.  Based on current trends in stormwater management and 
environmental planning, staff feels an emphasis on conservation of natural areas, integration of 
low impact development techniques, and buffers from wetlands are more appropriate strategies.  
With that in mind, staff recommends the following changes to Policy WQ5: 
 

POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE 
SITE, including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be 
encouraged.  If COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS shall not be are 
considered part of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot 
size or development density, Low Impact Development techniques or appropriate 
buffers shall be integrated into the development.  Open space developments 
shall be encouraged to REDUCE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREAS associated 
with new development and redevelopment.  

 
 

24



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 10 of 14 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Bell asked if this adjoined the Webber Tract. 
 
Ms. White stated yes. 
 
Mr. Clark asked what part of the conservation area are wetlands. 
 
Mr. Woody provided a map showing the conservation area and wetlands. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this is similar to spot zoning when you change a designation in the middle 
of another designation. 
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated that this would not be spot zoning because it is not a zoning issue.  Mr. 
Valdivieso provided an overview of the site.  Mr. Valdivieso stated that this is an appealing site 
for a potential upland marina because it complies with the county policies and LUP.  They can 
get to the North River without impacting wetlands.  They recognize that there may be some 
permitting issues that may prohibit a public upland marina from going on this site.  
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if you don’t get the permitting for the marina, would you still continue with the 
development of the project. 
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated that the marina is the jewel of this project, if this is not available; they 
would still like to focus on a waterfront community. 
  
The planning board discussed full service vs. limited service area, retail feasibility, traffic, free 
public access to the marina, connectivity to the marina, and Land Use Plan Policy WQ5.  
 
Mr. Woody stated they would like to make a revision to Policy WQ5 even if this amendment 
does not go through. The recommendation would be, if wetlands are used to determine density 
then a developer must integrate low impact development techniques or appropriate buffers. 
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated one of the recommendations states that in an effort to preserve water 
quality priority should be given to the retention and preservation of wetland areas. He 
understands the intention of this recommendation, but if in the future they want to put a 
boardwalk for public access through wetlands they don’t want it to be a problem.  
 
Mr. Woody stated that when an applicant has to get a CAMA major permit, CAMA requires the 
permit to be consistent with the LUP. CAMA takes policies like WQ5 quite literally.  
 
Mr. Clark asked if this were to be approved by the Planning Board and the Board of 
Commissioners, could the applicant come back with a different idea. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that if it were to be approved you still would need to go through a rezoning 
process.  Mr. Woody stated that if the LUP amendment is approved by the BOC, the county 
would become the applicant and this would be the county’s request before the Coastal 
Resources Commission.  
 
Mr. Valdivieso stated if this is approved by CAMA they will bring it back as a conditional zoning 
district request which conditions can be applied. 
 

25



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 11 of 14 

Mr. Kovacs explained the development and public input of the 2006 Land Use Plan which is 
updated every five years.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Clark motioned to recommend approval to amend the Currituck County Land Use Plan to 
designate approximately 57.58 acres of the Future Land Use map from Limited Services Area to 
Full Service Area as presented and with the amendment to LUP Policy WQ5. Ms. Robbins 
seconded the motion. Ayes:  Mr. Clark, Mr. Etheridge, and Ms. Robbins.  Ayes:  Mr. Bell, Mr. 
West, Mr. Midgette, Mr. Kovacs, and Ms. Wilson. Motion failed. 

26



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 12 of 14 

RESOLUTION OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CAMA LAND USE PLAN 

 
 WHEREAS, the County desires to amend its 2006 CAMA Land Use Plan, 
specifically the Future Land Use Map, to designate approximately 57.58 acres as “Full 
Service Area” from “Limited Service Area”; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County also desires to amend its 2006 CAMA Land Use Plan to 
amend Water Quality Policy (WQ5) to promote low impact development techniques; and  
 

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2009, the Planning Board recommended denial of 
the draft amendment to the CAMA Land Use Plan; however, the Board of 
Commissioners finds the amendment to be consistent with the objectives of the Plan; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County conducted a duly advertised public hearing on the draft 
amendment to the CAMA Land Use Plan at the Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Commissioners on Monday, March 16, 2009; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amendment to the Land Use Plan has been evaluated for its 
consistency with other existing policies and no internal inconsistencies exist; and  

 
WHEREAS, the amendment is consistent with the currently approved North 

Carolina Coastal Management Program and the rules of the Coastal Resources 
Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amendment is consistent with the six management topics 
outlined in the County’s Land Use Plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, the amendment does not violate any state or federal laws, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Board of Commissioners of  
Currituck County, North Carolina, has adopted the draft CAMA Land Use Plan 
amendment; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Manger of Currituck County is 
hereby authorized to submit the adopted CAMA Land Use Plan amendment to the State 
for certification as described above. 
 
Adopted this 16 day of March 2009. 

27



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 13 of 14 

Proposed Map Amendments 
Appendix I. Maps, Map 11.1 Future Land Use Map is amended by adding establishing a Full 
Service area and an inset depicting sub-area boundaries as shown below: 

 

 

Inset Map 

28



 

PB 09-04 Pittman/Williamson 
Land Use Plan Amendment 

Page 14 of 14 

Proposed Text Amendment 
 
Section 11: Land Classification System, Table 11.1 is amended by adding the following 
underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 

 
Table 11.1 Comparison of Land Allocated to Future Land Use and Projected Land 
Needs, 2025 
Land Use Class Total Acres 

Allocated to 
Each Land 
Class 
(a) 

% of Each 
Land Class in 
Development 

(b) 

Total Acreage 
Available for 
Development 
as Projected 
(a) x (b) 

Total 
Acreage 
Projected for 
Development 

Full Service Areas 17,653 17,711 80% 14,122 14,169  
Limited Service Areas26,626 26,568 65% 17,306 17,269  
Rural Areas 40,218 10% 4,021  
Conservation Areas 81,223 2% 1,624  
Totals 165,720 -- 37,073 37,083 37,183 

 
 
 

Proposed Policy Amendment 
 
Section 9: Land Use and Development Policies, Water Quality Policy (WQ5) is amended by 
adding the following underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 

 
POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE 
SITE, including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be 
encouraged.  If COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS shall not be are 
considered part of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot 
size or development density, Low Impact Development techniques or appropriate 
buffers shall be integrated into the development.  Open space developments 
shall be encouraged to REDUCE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREAS associated 
with new development and redevelopment 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 1

Land Use Attributes 
Proposed Fisher Landing Village and Jarvisburg Marina 

(57.58 Acres- Pittman Tract) 
February 2009 

 
A land use plan (LUP) amendment application has been filed with Currituck County requesting a Full Service Area 
designation for the Pittman Tract in the Jarvisburg sub-area. The site is currently classified as a Limited Service Area 
district. While such a request is considered in a nonspecific scenario for allowable uses in a Full Service district, the 
intent of this application is to support a specific waterfront and mixed use development with public, private, and 
economic development components. 
 
While independent of the LUP request, a “conditional district” PUD zoning application is currently being prepared for 
submittal by the next available filing date.  This application is intended to compliment and track closely behind the 
LUP application. It will also serve to expedite the rezoning process in consideration of significant commercial interest 
in the proposed development.   Commercial interest to date is strong due to the potential of a waterfront development 
concept, and if environmental permits are granted, amenities such as a boat access and/or docking areas would enhance 
the opportunity for a theme-based  retail interest.   
 
A Full Service designation is needed to support the proposed Fisher Landing Village residential condominium density.  
It is planned as desirable waterfront community with water related recreational amenities for the residents, with 
opportunities for public access as well. Waterfront access to the North River, the Albemarle Sound, and the Intercoastal 
Waterway would be a unique attribute for this development, and to the Currituck County mainland community.  Given 
the increase in density, zoning approval, and requisite environmental permitting, such a location could feasibly support 
uses such as a local market, eatery, retail shop(s), water sports and recreational activities, and related light commercial 
uses in keeping with the overall architectural theme and spirit of the proposed development and surrounding coastal 
agricultural community.     The zoning application will request approval of a residential zoning and Conditional District 
-Planned Unit Development overlay designation, to include 10% of the area in LBH zoning to support the non-
residential possibilities for the development.  Architectural themes are envisioned with “Village” feel, managed through 
covenants and restrictions.    
 
  
Fishers Landing Village will be a valuable asset to the County and bring a number of opportunities.   According to a 
study prepared for Currituck County by the UNC Center for Competitive Economics, “Currituck’s Tourism Industry is 
a Precious Asset”, and “its Retail Potential is Understated”.     With zoning approval and environmental permitting, this 
development could potentially provide amenities and support associated uses to boost tourism and retail sales in the 
County.    The study speaks of “targeted retail” which would be allowed under the requested LUP and Zoning request.     
Other needs identified by the study which potentially could be met by the development include:   jobs during 
construction and jobs in the Village businesses; balancing the County’s economic base between the beaches and the 
mainland to mitigate storm vulnerability of the beaches and their eroding shorelines; and leveraging opportunities for 
off-season attraction of visiting family groups typical of Currituck through the eco-tourism uses of the public area and 
educational facility.   
 
In addition to the UNC study, if approved, the project plans would address and/or meet stated local goals and 
objectives.   The residential community would be pedestrian-friendly with internal pedestrian circulation.   Wetlands 
and other environmental sensitivities would be avoided. Public access to the North River would be included in a 
CAMA major environmental permit application.   The following Currituck County policies could  be met if the 
proposed LUP amendment and PUD zoning applications are approved, if policy WQ5 (gross density calculation) is 
brought into compliance with other County ordinances, and if a major CAMA permit is issued:  
 

o Policy PA1- public access to the water and public use of the coastline  
o Policy PA5- public boat access  
o Policy CD8- mixed use development  
o Policy WQ6- preservation and protection of vegetated buffers  
o Policy ML3- access to the ocean and estuarine waters by mainland residents  
o Policy ES2- non-coastal wetlands conservation  

 
In summary, the proposed LUP, supported by the rezoning request and policy considerations, can meet many goals and 
objectives of Currituck County and provide an opportunity for desirable economic growth.    The Full Service District 
designation and amendment of WQ5 will facilitate building at a density required to support desirable public elements 
proposed with the development, as well as potential  retail components that will undoubtedly compliment and/or 
facilitate other commercial opportunities on the mainland.     This unique resort development has the potential to  
capture and preserve environmental attributes, recapture local history via theme-based non-residential components, 
increase waterfront recreation and access on the mainland, create educational opportunities via commercial and 
recreational uses (i.e. eco-kayak tours, nature walks, etc), and enhance economic development opportunities for the 
mainland- all within a pedestrian friendly waterfront residential neighborhood.                  

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



Number 2009073

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50550-592010 AIRPORT PROJECTS 189,935$                    
50380-481000 INVESTMENT EARNINGS 189,935$                  

189,935$                    189,935$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th  day of March 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $189,935.

Airport Construction Projects (50550) - To appropriate investment earnings from construction funds for 
airport hangar and taxiway expansion projects as updated February 19, 2009..

63



Number 2009074

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

63838-558400 Solid Waste Disposal Tax 25,000$                      
63838-590000 Capital Outlay 24,725$                      
63320-431600 Solid Waste Disposal Tax Revenue 25,000$                    
63380-481000 Investment Earnings 24,725$                    

49,725$                      49,725$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th  day of March 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Solid Waste Fund (63) - Increased by $49,725.

Solid Waste (63838) - To appropriate funds for solid waste disposal tax implemented October 1, 2008 and 
increase appropriations to upgrade electrical service at convenience sites.

64



Number 2009075

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

51848-595002 Soccer Lights/Knapp Renovation/Bleachers 340,000$                    
51848-597002 Moyock Renovations_2005 48,167$                    
51848-594000 Jarvisburg Elementary School 140,000$                  
51848-597000 Shawboro Elementary School 151,833$                  

340,000$                    340,000$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th  day of March 2009, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: School Construction Fund (51) - No change.

School Construction Fund (51) - To transfer funds from Jarvisburg & Shawboro Elementary School 
Construction and to clost Moyock Elementary School Renovations from 2005 for Soccer lights at CCHS 
($140,000); Portable Bleachers ($100,000); Knapp gym locker room renovations ($75,000); and Knapp 
science wing renovations ($25,000) as requested from Superintendent Warren in letter dated December 19, 
2008.

65



Number 2009076

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10650-561000 Professional Services 300$                          
10650-553000 Dues & Subscriptions 300$                        

300$                          300$                        

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  16th day of March 2009 
, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Economic Development (10650) - Payment for consulting services related to County 
pursuing Green Business Fund grant dollars - Glenn Mauney, WECC, travel expenses to be 
paid (we have invoice).

66



Number 2009077

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10480-557301 Floodplain Mapping 7,000$                       
10480-557300 Excise Tax on Deeds 7,000$                     

7,000$                       7,000$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  16th day of March 2009 
, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Register of Deeds (10480) - To transfer funds for Floodplain mapping fund which had 
generated more revenue than anticipated.

67



Number 2009078

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10440-545100 Credit Cards Fees 1,500$                       
10440-535000 Safekeeping Fees 1,500$                     

1,500$                       1,500$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  16th day of March 2009 
, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Finance (10440) - To transfer funds for increased customer use of credit cards for tax 
payments.

68



Number 2009079

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10430-511000 Telephone & Postage 1,500$                       
10430-545000 Contract Services 1,500$                     

1,500$                       1,500$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  16th day of March 2009 
, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Elections (10430) - To transfer funds for postage for operations for the remainder of this 
fiscal year.

69



Number 2009080

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

12543-511003 Telephone & Postage 2,000$                       
12543-516103 Building & Grounds 220$                          
12543-545000 Contract Services 1,500$                       
12543-561003 Professional Services 4,000$                       
12543-590003 Capital Outlay 996$                          
12543-531003 Gas, Oil, Etc 6,000$                     
12543-516003 Maintenance & Repair 2,716$                     

8,716$                       8,716$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  16th day of March 2009 
, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change.

Moyock Vol Fire Department (12543) - To transfer funds for operations for the remainder of 
this fiscal year.

70



Number 2009081

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10441-545000 Contract Services 20,202$                     
10511-545000 Contract Services 1,600$                     
10510-511010 Data Transmission 15,000$                   
10960-516000 Telephone 3,600$                     

20,202$                     20,200$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  16th day of March 2009 
, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Information Technology (10441); Jail (10511); Sheriff (10510); Central Services (10960) - 
Transfer funds for Voice over IP telephone service.

71



Number 2009082

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

12546-511006 Telephone & Postage 6,400$                       
12546-513006 Utilities 1,000$                     
12546-516006 Maintenance & Repair 9,000$                     
12546-516106 Building & Grounds 1,500$                       
12546-531006 Gas, Oil, Etc 500$                          
12546-532006 Supplies 2,500$                       
12546-532106 Fire Supplies 2,000$                       
12546-536006 Uniforms 1,500$                     
12546-536106 Personal Protective Equip 4,000$                       
12546-553006 Dues & Subscriptions 2,800$                       
12546-554006 Insurance 4,200$                     
12546-590006 Capital Outlay 4,000$                     

19,700$                     19,700$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the  16th day of March 2009 
, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - No change.

Corolla VFD (12546) - To transfer funds for operations.  Capital items of Scott air bottles and 
mask will not be purchased, which was budgeted at $5,000 and this will be used for 
additional Personal protective equipment of $4,000 and communication equipment of 
$1,000.

72



73



74



75



TO:  Dan Scanlon

From:  Sandra Hill

Date:  March 3, 2009

Subject:  Record Disposal

The Finance Office would like permission to dispose of the following records, which are
scheduled for disposal as per the record retention schedule.

Approximate number  
Time Period Description of records

July 1, 2004 - June 30, 2005 Accounts Payable Invoices 13,818                        
Bank Statements 144                             
Bank Reconcilliation Reports 144                             
Bank confirmations 2,600                          
Revenue Files 2,800                          
Daily Receipts 1,100                          
Budget Amendments 124                             
Journals 430                             
NC Sales Tax Summary Reports 12                               
Sales Tax Refund Report 1                                 
Investment Records 200                             

Memorandum

76



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
March 2, 2009 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 1:00 p.m. to discuss 
Utilities and at 5:00 p.m. for a reception and a report to 
the people by Cooperative Extension. 
  
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its 
regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in 
the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members 
present:  Chairman Etheridge, Commissioners O’Neal, 
Aydlett, Nelms, Rorer, Gregory and Taylor. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
The Reverend Van Keane, New Beginnings Assembly of God, was 
present to give the invocation 
 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Commissioner Taylor moved to approve agenda as amended to 
add to consent agenda, Public School Capital School 
Funding, and Ordinance for County Boards.  Commissioner 
Rorer seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Aaron Gay, NC Forest Service, to Discuss Marsh Fires   

Item 4 Public Hearing and Action:  08-42 Blackwater Training Center:  
Request for a Special Use Permit for a Security Training 
Operations and Services Facility on property located at the South 
end of Puddin Ridge Road, adjacent to the Camden County border, 
Tax Map 12, Lot 1, and Tax Map 17, Lot 1A, Moyock Township. 

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 09-07 Currituck County Schools:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance to exempt public outdoor recreational facilities from 
the requirements of Section 9.4 Lighting Standards. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 09-08 Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners:  Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapter 10: Subdivision Requirements, to 
exempt property divisions transferred to a government entity from 
the zoning and subdivision requirements of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 09-02 Currituck County Planning 
Department:  Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Chapter 3: 

77



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   2 

Special Requirements, and Chapter 17: Definitions to revise the 
requirements for Adult Establishments and to permit Tattoo and 
Body Piercing Studios only in the HM zoning district. 

Item 8 Consideration of Concession License Agreement for Airport   

Item 9 Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget amendments 
2. Approval of Code Enforcement Violation Files Disposition 
3. Resolution East Carolina HIV/AIDS Grant 
4. Magette Well change order #1, Mainland Water Construction 
5. Crowder Construction change order #3, Mainland Water 

construction 
6. Hendrix-Barnhill CO1 & CO2, Mainland Water 
7. McKenzie Construction change order #2, Moyock Library 

Construction 
8. Amendment to The Design Collaborative agreement for Moyock 

Library 
9. Resolution to Declare Surplus Property for Disposal  
10. Resolution supporting the creation of an Insurance Commission 
11. Approval of Grant for Mosquito Control and Resolution 

designating County Manager to sign 
12. Approval of Job Descriptions in Tourism Department 
13. Approval of Building Inspection Records Disposition 
14. Approval of February 16, 2009, Minutes 

Item 10 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 11 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public comment period. 

Juanita Krause, Summit Farms, thanked the Board for their 
support with the OLF meeting. 

Doris Flora, Moyock, thanked the Board and staff for 
support of the OLF meeting. 

Commissioner Nelms, commented on the traffic congestion on 
NC 168 and the use of the Welcome Sign to advise public of 
these types of problems. 

Commissioner Taylor thanked the citizens for their support 
of the OLF meeting. 

Mr. Scanlon, County Manager, stated that there was no water 
line going into Blackwater. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Etheridge closed 
the public hearing. 

78



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   3 

Aaron Gay, NC Forest Service, to Discuss Marsh Fires  

Aaron Gay, NC Forest Service, made a presentation on the 
reason for burning the marsh and process for burn permits. 

Commissioner O’Neal stated that he had received calls from 
neighbors about fires being too close to their homes. 

Mr. Gay, stated that all these fires have been monitored 
and are legal.  

Public Hearing and Action:  08-42 Blackwater Training 
Center:  Request for a Special Use Permit for a Security 
Training Operations and Services Facility on property 
located at the South end of Puddin Ridge Road, adjacent to 
the Camden County border, Tax Map 12, Lot 1, and Tax Map 
17, Lot 1A, Moyock Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
ITEM:  SPECIAL USE PERMIT – SECURITY TRAINING 

OPERATIONS AND SERVICES FACILITY 
 
LOCATION: 850 Pudding Ridge Road, Moyock 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Agricultural (A) 
 
TAX ID:  0012-000-0001-0000, 0017-000-001A-0000 
 
OWNER: E & J Holdings, LLC 
 PO Box 1029 
 Moyock, NC 27958 
 
APPLICANT: Hyman & Robey, PC 
 PO Box 339 
 Camden, NC 27921 
 
 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Undeveloped, Residential 

Single Family 
A 

SOUTH: Undeveloped A 
EAST: Undeveloped A 
WEST: Undeveloped A 
 

79



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   4 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the 

site as Limited Service and Conservation 
within the Moyock sub-area. 

 
NARRATIVE: 
1. E & J Holdings is requesting a Special Use Permit for the 

Blackwater Training Facility in Currituck County to allow 
operation of existing firing ranges and a portion of a 
driver training facility. 

 
2. The property consists of multiple parcels totaling 4,639 

contiguous acres in Currituck County. 
 
3. This property is zoned Agricultural and the Table of 

Permissible Uses allows Security Training Operations and 
Services Facilities in this zoning district with a 
Special Use Permit. 

 
4. The existing firing ranges shall only be used for small 

arms training.  The downrange safety zones specified in 
the Military Handbook (ML-HDBK-1027/3B) will determine 
the allowable caliber of weapon.  

 
5. The firing ranges are required to be 5280 feet from any 

adjacent property lines.  As submitted, the existing 
ranges are located 6,500 feet from the nearest property 
line (Summit Farms subdivision). 

 
6. Proof of minimum liability insurance in the amount of 

$2,000,000 was provided to the Planning Department. 
 
7. The facility must be operated in accordance with the 

requirements of Section 3.3.1 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

 
8. The site plan and special use permit submitted for this 

project were reviewed at the January 21, 2009 TRC 
meeting.  A revised site plan and narrative addressing 
the TRC comments was received and approved (see 
attached).  Recommended conditions of approval are 
included in the staff comments. 

 
 
QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special Use Permits are intended to allow the Board of 
Commissioners flexibility in the administration of the UDO. 

80



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   5 

Through the Special Use Permit procedure, property uses 
which would otherwise be considered undesirable in certain 
districts can be developed subject to Conditions of 
Approval to minimize any negative effects they might have 
on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a Special Use Permit, certain criteria 
must be satisfied.  The criteria and suggested findings of 
fact are outlined as follows: 
 
1. COMPLETENESS OF THE APPLICATION 

Suggested Findings: 
a) The application is complete. 

 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Suggested Findings: 
a) The applicant's proposal will be required to maintain 

compliance with all UDO requirements and any 
additional requirements of the Board of 
Commissioners. 

 
i. The proposed use will not materially endanger the 

public health or safety for the following 
reasons: 
Suggested Findings: 
1. The firing ranges will be over 6,500 feet from 

the nearest property not owned by E&J 
Holdings. 

2. The use will meet all of the safety 
requirements found in Section 3.3.1 of the 
Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
ii. The proposed use will not substantially injure 

the value of adjoining or abutting property for 
the following reasons: 
Suggested Findings: 
1. The Table of Permitted Uses allows Security 

Training Operations and Services Facilities in 
this zoning district with a Special Use 
Permit. 

2. The surrounding land uses will be buffered by 
existing vegetation, drainage canals, and 
required setbacks of one mile for firing 
ranges. 

 
iii. The proposed use will be in harmony with the 

particular neighborhood or area in which it is to 
be located. 
Suggested Findings: 

81



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   6 

1. The facility shall not conduct firing range 
activities prior to 7 a.m. or after 10 p.m. 
EST daily Monday through Saturday and on 
Sundays prior to 9 a.m. or after 10 p.m. EST.  
No firing or explosive training activities 
shall occur on Christmas Day. 

2. There are no residential uses within 8,000 
feet of the firing ranges. 

 
iv. The proposed use will be in general conformity 

with the Land Use Plan, and any other plan 
officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners. 
Suggested Findings: 
1. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as 

Limited Service and Conservation within the 
Moyock Sub-Area and the proposed use is in 
keeping with the policies of the plan. 

2. The intensity and minimal built upon area of 
this development will not significantly impact 
any wetlands or natural features of the larger 
site. 

 
v. The proposed use will not exceed the county's 

ability to provide adequate public facilities, 
including, but not limited to, schools, fire and 
rescue, law enforcement, and other county 
facilities.  Applicable state standards and 
guidelines shall be followed for determining when 
applicable facilities are adequate.  Such 
facilities must be in place or programmed to be 
in place within two years after the initial 
approval of the sketch plan.  In the case of 
subdivision and multi-family development at the 
sketch plan/special use, preliminary plat or 
final plat stage, the Board of Commissioners may 
establish time limits on the number of lots/units 
available for development to assure adequate 
public facilities are available in. 
Suggested Findings: 
1. The proposed commercial use will not exceed 

the county's ability to provide adequate 
public facilities. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposal appears to meet the criteria for granting a 
Special Use Permit and staff recommends APPROVAL with the 
following conditions: 
 

82



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   7 

1. The revised plan dated 1-21-2009 shall be the approved 
site plan for this permit. 

2. All required county, state, or federal permits shall 
be secured before the use resumes and be kept in good 
standing for the duration of the use. 

3. The storage of munitions or explosives shall be 
prohibited in Currituck County. 

4. The Special Use Permit is valid for one year from the 
date of approval, after which it must be renewed by 
the Currituck County Board of Commissioners. 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Board recommended APPROVAL with the staff 
recommendations and the following conditions: 
 

1. Each firing range shall be posted indicating the 
allowable caliber of weapon allowed and any other 
applicable rules. 

2. A copy of the Military Handbook (ML-HDBK-1027/3B) 
shall be available at each firing range. 

 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Hyman provided an overview of the request. Blackwater 
does not plan any new construction in Currituck. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked Mr. Hyman if he was in agreement to the 
staff recommendations. 
 
Mr. Hyman stated yes. 
 
Ms. Motes stated she is the most adjacent property owner to 
the existing facility. Ms. Motes concern is the inspection 
and monitoring of these firing ranges. Ms. Motes stated Ms. 
McKenzie has provided her with an email from the Navy 
stating they have inspected the firing ranges and found 
them in compliance. Ms. Motes has not been able to verify 
this information because it was blacked out where the email 
originated.   
 
Ms. McKenzie stated that ATF monitors the storage of 
Blackwater’s armory.  The email that Blackwater received 
from the Navy stated the firing ranges were in compliance 
and she will need to contact the Navy to get permission to 
release a name. Ms. McKenzie stated if the county would 
give them a list of county employees, they would have them 
cleared at the gate so when they showed up with proper 
identification they could go in.  
 

83



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   8 

Ms. Robbins stated the email refers to ranges 30 through 32 
as inspected and the ranges in questioned have not been 
inspected. 
 
Ms. McKenzie stated yes, but they would have an inspection 
of the ranges before this goes to the Board of 
Commissioners meeting. 
 
Mr. West asked if Blackwater falls under any organization 
for safety inspections. 
 
Ms. McKenzie stated they fall under the Navy’s 
requirements.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. Clark motioned to recommend approval with staff 
recommendations of a Special Use Permit for a Security 
Training Operations and Services Facility with added 
conditions to include that each firing range be posted 
indicating the maximum caliber weapon used and a copy of 
the military handbook be available. Mr. West seconded the 
motion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. 

Doris Flora, opposes the request. 

Eddie Hyman, Engineer, was present to answer questions. 

Kate McKenzie, Attorney, reviewed the ranges and was 
present to answer questions. 

Juanita Krause, Summit Farms, opposes permit and asked why 
Camden Sheriff instead of Currituck answers noise 
complaints. 

Sherry Motes, expressed concerns with safety and hours of 
operation. 

Troy Breathwaite, expressed his concerns with noise and 
hours of operation. 

Linda Knox, requested the Board to table the request. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Etheridge closed 
the public hearing. 

Commissioner Taylor moved to approve with Staff and 
Planning Board recommendations, no Sunday hours, request 
Camden County Board consider rules as Currituck County, and 

84



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   9 

include if they have a violation permit can be revoked.  
Commissioner Nelms seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners O’Neal and Aydlett voting no. 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 09-07 Currituck County 
Schools:  Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance to exempt public outdoor recreational 
facilities from the requirements of Section 9.4 Lighting 
Standards. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the amendment. 
 
Currituck County Schools is requesting a text amendment to 
exempt public outdoor recreation facilities from the 
mainland lighting standards; Section 9.4 of the UDO.   
 
The mainland lighting standards place additional 
requirements on properties that contain structures in 
excess of 20,000 heated square feet. In summary, the 
current lighting regulations restrict athletic field 
lighting to a maximum height of 25 feet and a maximum of 3 
footcandles measured at the property line.  The text 
amendment proposes to create an exemption from these 
standards for facilities such as athletic fields, community 
swimming pools, parks and water access areas.   
 
What follows are the minutes from the February 10 Planning 
Board meeting and a draft of the text amendment as 
described above.  The Planning Board recommended unanimous 
approval of this request. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
The board discussed different height of the lighting. 
 
Mr. Woody will check on the lighting at Griggs School 
before this goes to the BOC meeting.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to recommend approval to amend the 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance to exempt 
public outdoor recreational facilities from the 
requirements of Section 9.4 Lighting Standards. Mr. Clark 
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. There being 
no comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Nelms moved to approve. Commissioner O’Neal 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

85



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   10 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 09-08 Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners:  Request to amend the Currituck County 
Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 10: Subdivision 
Requirements, to exempt property divisions transferred to a 
government entity from the zoning and subdivision 
requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request.   
 
The Currituck County Board of Commissioners is requesting a 
text amendment that would exempt the division of property 
dedicated to the public from the requirements of the 
Unified Development Ordinance.  As proposed, the amendment 
will allow a governmental entity to accept a dedicated 
parcel of land that may not meet the requirements of the 
subdivision ordinance; however, all resultant parcels must 
meet the full requirements of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 
To qualify for the proposed exemption, the dedicated 
property must be used for the conservation of natural 
resources, utilities, or other public purposes. If the 
governmental entity transfers the dedicated property to a 
non-governmental entity at a later date or the property is 
further divided for non-public uses, all requirements of 
the Unified Development Ordinance must then be met. 
 
What follows are the minutes from the February 10 Planning 
Board meeting and a draft of the text amendment as 
described above.  The Planning Board recommended unanimous 
approval of this request. 
 
Should you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact 
Ben Woody at 232-6029.   
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. West asked if this would include open space. 
 
Mr. Woody stated yes if it was accepted by the government 
entity. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval to amend the 
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 10: 
Subdivision Requirements, to exempt property divisions 
transferred to a government entity from the zoning and 
subdivision requirements of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. Mr. Bell seconded the motion. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

86



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   11 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing.  There being 
no comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve.  Commissioner Nelms 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 09-02 Currituck County 
Planning Department:  Request to amend the Currituck County 
Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, 
Chapter 3: Special Requirements, and Chapter 17: 
Definitions to revise the requirements for Adult 
Establishments and to permit Tattoo and Body Piercing 
Studios only in the HM zoning district. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
The enclosed text amendment submitted by the Currituck 
County Planning Department is intended to revise and 
clarify several of the definitions included in the Adult 
Establishments ordinance.  During a recent Board of 
Adjustment case regarding the issuance of a conditional use 
permit, it was determined the definition of Adult Business 
may unintentionally include land uses that are not of an 
adult nature.  This text amendment is intended to clean up 
this and other potential inconsistencies in the Adult 
Establishments ordinance. 
 
Additionally, the Board of Commissioners requested that 
Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios be prohibited in the 
General Business (GB), Commercial (C), and Light 
Manufacturing (LM) zoning districts.  This change would 
provide that these establishments are only permitted in the 
Heavy Manufacturing (HM) zoning district with the issuance 
of a Conditional Use Permit. 
 
What follows are the minutes from the January 10 and 
February 10 Planning Board meetings and a draft of the text 
amendment as described above.  The Planning Board 
recommended unanimous approval of this request with the 
modified requirement that the spacing provisions for adult 
establishments be increased from 1000 feet to 1500 feet. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION – February 10 meeting 
None 
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to recommend approval of the text 
amendment as presented with the exception of increasing the 
adult establishments spacing requirement from 1,000 feet to 

87



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   12 

1,500 feet.  Ms. Robbins seconded the motion. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION – January 10 meeting 
Mr. West asked about location buffers in feet and that no 
adult establishment shall be 1000 feet from a church, 
public school, and public playground. How is this measured? 
Can this be changed to 1 mile? 
 
Mr. Woody stated it is measured building to building. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that if you set a provision in your county 
which excludes adult businesses it would be 
unconstitutional. Mr. Woody stated a map would need to be 
generated to show these areas with increased buffers. Mr. 
Woody stated that tattoo and body piercing studios are not 
adult establishments. Mr. Woody stated he will ask the 
county attorney to review the separation of an adult 
establishment and tattoo studios.     
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to tabled PB 09-02 text amendment so 
staff can determine increased spacing provisions and map 
adult establishments and tattoo studios.  Ms. Turner 
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Currituck County 
PB 09-02 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
An amendment to Chapter 3: Special Requirements, Chapter 
17: Definitions, and Chapter 2: Zoning Districts. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County 
of Currituck, North Carolina that the Unified Development 
Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Chapter 3: Special Requirements, Section 3.7.1 
is amended by deleting the strikethrough language and 
adding the following underlined language: 
 
3.7.1 Adult Establishments (Special Use Permit only) 
 
A. The provisions of these regulations are adopted by the 

Currituck County Board of Commissioners under authority 
granted by the General Assembly of the State of North 
Carolina, in Chapter 153A, (45-50) and further Article 
VI of Chapter 153A, Section 135 of the General Statutes. 
From and after the effective date of September 19, 1994, 

88



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   13 

these regulations shall apply to every building, lot, 
tract, or parcel of land within Currituck County.  For 
the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals and 
general welfare of the citizenry of Currituck County, 
these regulations are adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners to regulate adult establishments and 
sexually oriented businesses, as hereby defined, located 
in Currituck County. Further, these regulations have 
been made with reasonable consideration among other 
things, as to the character of the county and its areas 
and their peculiar suitability for these businesses.  

 
B. These regulations shall not repeal, impair, abrogate, or 

interfere with any existing easements, covenants, deed 
restrictions, setback requirements, rules, definitions, 
regulations previously adopted pursuant to law in any 
established zoning district in Currituck County. 
However, where these regulations impose greater 
restrictions, the provisions of these regulations shall 
govern.  

 
C. For the purpose of these regulations. the following 

definitions shall apply: Adult Establishments and 
Sexually Oriented Businesses as defined in Chapter 17: 
Definitions shall apply.  

 
1. Adult Arcade: An establishment where, for any form 

of consideration, one or more motion picture 
projectors, slide projectors, or similar machines 
for viewing by five or fewer persons each are used 
to show films, motion pictures, video cassettes, 
slides, or other photographic reproductions that are 
characterized by an emphasis upon the depiction or 
description of specified sexual activities or 
specified anatomical areas (as defined hereinafter). 

 
2. Adult Bookstore: An establishment that has as 

substantial portion (over 25 percent of total retail 
space) of its stock-in-trade and offers for rent or 
sale, for any consideration, any one or more of the 
following: 1) books, magazines, periodicals, or 
other printed matter, or photographs, films, motion 
pictures video cassettes, slides, or other visual 
representations that a emphasis upon the depiction 
or description of specified sexual activities or 
specified anatomical areas; or 2) instruments, 
devices, or paraphernalia that are designed for use 
in connection with specified sexual activities. 

 

89



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   14 

3. Adult Business: An adult business shall be defined 
as any business activity, club or other 
establishment which permits its employees, members, 
patrons or quest on its premises to exhibit any 
specified anatomical areas before any other person 
or persons. 

 
4. Adult Motion Picture Theater: An establishment 

where, for any form of consideration, films, motion 
pictures, video cassettes, slides, or similar 
photographic reproductions are shown, and in which a 
substantial portion (25 percent) of the total 
presentation time is devoted to the showing of 
material characterized by an emphasis on the 
depiction or description of specified sexual 
activities or specified anatomical areas. 

 
5. Adult Theater: A theater, concert hall, auditorium 

or similar establishment characterized by 
(activities featuring) the exposure of specified 
anatomical areas or by specified sexual activities.  

 
6. Massage: Any manipulation of body muscle or tissue 

by rubbing, stroking, kneading, or tapping, by hand 
or mechanical device.  

 
7. Massage Business: Any establishment or business 

wherein massage is practiced, including 
establishments commonly known as massage studios or 
massage parlors. Specifically excluding from this 
definition are massages under the direct supervision 
of a licensed physician or a masseuse licensed in 
the State of North Carolina or where massage is 
accessory to the principal use (such as at health 
clubs and beauty salons).  

 
8. Sexually Oriented Business: A sexually oriented 

business shall be defined as any business activity, 
club or other establishment, within which the 
exhibition, showing, rental, or sale of materials 
distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on 
material depicting, describing, or exhibiting 
specified anatomical areas or relating to specified 
sexual activities is permitted.  Sexually oriented 
businesses shall include, but are not limited to; 
adult arcades, adult bookstores, adult motion 
picture theaters, adult theaters, massage 
businesses, as defined by this ordinance.  

 

90



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   15 

9. Specified Anatomical Areas: Specified anatomical 
areas shall be defined as less than completely and 
opaquely covered human genitals, pubic regions, 
buttocks and female breasts below a point 
immediately above the top of the areola.  

 
10. Specified sexual activities: Specified sexual 

activities shall be defined as: 
 

a. Human genitals in a state of stimulation or 
arousal; 

 
b. Acts of human masturbation, sexual intercourse, 

sodomy; or 
 
c. Fondling or other erotic genitals, pubic 

regions, buttocks or female breasts. 
 

11. Total Retail Space: Any space within the structure 
that is used for the direct sale of merchandise to 
the public and storage areas for those items.  

 
D. Adult businesses, establishments and sexually oriented 

businesses shall be subject to the following 
restrictions: 

 
1. Adult businesses establishments may be located only 

in an HM (Heavy Manufacturing) zoning district 
provided a special use permit is obtained. 

 
2. No adult business establishment shall be permitted 

in any building:  
 

a. Located within 1000 1500 feet in any direction 
from a building used as a residential dwelling 
and any R and RA zoning district.  

 
b. Located within 1000 1500 feet in any direction 

from a building in which an adult business 
establishment or a sexually oriented business is 
located.  

 
c. Located within 1000 1500 feet in any direction 

from a building used as a church, synagogue, or 
other house of worship.  

 
d. Located within 1000 1500 feet in any direction 

from a building used as a public school or as a 
state licensed day care center.  

91



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   16 

 
e. Located within 1000 1500 feet in any direction 

from any lot or parcel on which a public 
playground, public swimming pool, or public park 
is located. 

 
3. Except for signs as permitted in Chapter 7, 

promotional displays and presentations shall not be 
visible to the public from sidewalks, walkways or 
streets. 

 
4. Determination of parking requirements shall be the 

responsibility of the zoning administrator who shall 
use the table found in Chapter 8 as a guide (i.e. 
adult motion picture theaters shall provide parking 
as is required for other motion picture theaters; 
adult businesses shall provide parking as is 
required for dance halls, bars and nightclubs, 
etc.). 

 
E. Any adult business establishment or sexually oriented 

business lawfully operating on September 19, 1994, which 
is in violation of this ordinance shall be deemed a 
nonconforming use.  Any use which is determined to be 
nonconforming by application of the provisions of this 
section shall be permitted to continue for a period not 
to exceed two years.  Such nonconforming uses shall not 
be increased, enlarged, extended, or altered except that 
the use may be changed to a conforming use.  If a 
nonconforming use is discontinued for a period of 180 
days or more it shall not be reestablished.  

 
F. If two or more adult businesses, establishments or 

sexually oriented adult businesses are within 1000 feet 
of one another and otherwise in a permissible location, 
the business which was first established and continually 
operating at its present location shall be considered 
the conforming use and the later-established 
business(es) shall be considered nonconforming.  

 
G. An adult business establishment or sexually oriented 

adult business lawfully operating as a conforming use 
shall not be rendered nonconforming by the subsequent 
location of a church, house of worship, day care center, 
school, playground, public swimming pool, or public park 
within 1000 feet of the adult business and sexually 
oriented business. 

 
 

92



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   17 

Item 2: That Chapter 17: Definitions is amended by deleting 
the strikethrough language, adding the underlined language 
and reordering in alphabetical order the following 
definitions: 
 
Sexually Oriented Business (aka Adult Establishment or 
Sexually Oriented Establishment) 
A sexually oriented business shall be defined as any 
business activity, club or other establishment, within 
which the exhibition, showing, rental, or sale of materials 
distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on material 
depicting, describing, or exhibiting specified anatomical 
areas or relating to specified sexual activities is 
permitted. Sexually oriented businesses shall include, but 
are not limited to, adult arcades, adult bookstores, adult 
businesses, adult motion picture theaters, adult theaters, 
escort agencies, and massage businesses, as defined by this 
ordinance.  As used in this Ordinance, the following 
definitions shall apply: 
 

a. Adult Arcade:  An establishment where, for any form 
of consideration, one or more motion picture 
projectors, slide projectors, or similar machines 
for viewing by five or fewer persons each are used 
to show films, motion pictures, video cassettes, 
digital reproductions, slides, or other photographic 
reproductions that are characterized by an emphasis 
upon the depiction or description of specified 
sexual activities or specified anatomical areas. 

 
b. Adult Bookstore:  An establishment that has as 

substantial portion (over 25% of total retail space) 
of its stock-in-trade and offers for rent or sale, 
for any consideration, any one or more of the 
following: 

 
i. books, magazines, periodicals, or other printed 

matter, or photographs, films, motion pictures, 
video cassettes, digital reproductions, slides, 
or other visual representations that are 
characterized by an emphasis upon the depiction 
or description of specified sexual activities or 
specified anatomical areas; or 

 
ii. instruments, devices, or paraphernalia that 

are designed for use in connection with specified 
sexual activities. 

 
c. Adult Business: An adult business shall be defined 

as any business activity, club or other 
93



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   18 

establishment which permits its employees, members, 
patrons, or quest on its premises to exhibit any 
specified anatomical areas before any other person 
or persons.  A nightclub, bar, restaurant, or other 
commercial establishment that regularly features, 
exhibits, or displays as one of its principal 
business purposes: 

 
i. persons who appear nude or semi-nude; or 

 
ii. live performances which are characterized by 

the exposure of specified anatomical areas or by 
specified sexual activities; or 

 
iii. films, motion pictures, videocassettes, 

digital reproductions, slides, or other 
photographic reproductions which depict or 
describe specified sexual activities or specified 
anatomical areas. 

 
d. Adult Motion Picture Theater:  An establishment 

where, for any form of consideration, films, motion 
pictures, video cassettes, digital reproductions, 
slides, or similar photographic reproductions are 
regularly shown, and in which a substantial portion 
(25%) of the total presentation time is devoted to 
the showing of material characterized by an emphasis 
on the depiction or description of as one of its 
principal business purposes that depict or describe 
specified sexual activities or specified anatomical 
areas. 

 
e. Adult Theater:  A theater, concert hall, auditorium 

or similar establishment characterized by 
(activities featuring) the exposure of specified 
anatomical areas or by specified sexual activities. 

 
f. Escort Agencies:  A person or business that 

furnishes, offers to furnish, or advertises to 
furnish escorts as one of its principal business 
purposes, for a fee, tip, or other consideration. 

 
g. Massage Business:  Any establishment or business 

wherein massage is practiced, including 
establishments commonly known as massage studios or 
massage parlors. Specifically excludinged from this 
definition are massages under the direct supervision 
of (i) a licensed physician by (ii) a masseuse 
licensed in the State of North Carolina, or (iii) 
where massage is an accessory to the principle use 

94



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   19 

(except as an accessory to an adult establishment or 
sexually oriented business) such as at health clubs 
and beauty salons 

 
h. Specified Anatomical Areas: Specified anatomical 

areas shall be defined as less than completely and 
opaquely covered human genitals, pubic regions, 
buttocks and female breasts below a point 
immediately above the top of the areola; or human 
male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if 
completely and opaquely covered. 

 
i. Specified Sexual Activities:  Specified sexual 

activities shall include, but are not limited to, 
the following be defined as: 

 
i. human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation, 

or arousal, or tumescence; or  
 
ii. sex acts, normal or perverted, actual or 

simulated, including of human masturbation, 
sexual intercourse, sodomy, or oral copulation; 
or 

 
iii. fondling or other erotic touching of human 

genitals, pubic regions, buttocks, anus, or 
female breasts. 

 
 
Item 3: That Chapter 2: Zoning Districts, Section 2.5 
Permitted Uses Table is amended by deleting the following 
strikethrough language:  
 
Section 2.5 Permitted Uses Table 
 
Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 
Office & 
Service  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements 
Tattoo and 
Body 
Piercing 
Studios 

IV       C C  C C 3.5.8 

 
 
Item 4: That Chapter 3: Special Requirements, Section 3.5.8 
is amended by adding the following underlined language: 
 
3.5.8 Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios (Conditional Use 
Permit only) 
 
 

95



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   20 

Item 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and 
if any of its provisions or any sentence, clause, or 
paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of 
the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall 
not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which 
can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application. 
 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. 

Brian Bashears, wanted to know which Board member had 
requested this amendment. 

John Snowden, Maple Road, commented on the first amendment 
right and violation of this. 

Maria Avery, commented on image of county and business of 
this type on the corridor and the use of business licenses. 

Commissioner Nelms stated that this would run businesses 
out of the county. 

Commissioner Taylor stated that Mr. Bashears had a nice 
establishment and if he wanted to relocate, he would be 
able to. 

Chairman Etheridge closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Nelms moved to vote on items separate. 
Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve Chapter 2 zoning 
districts, Chapter 3 Special requirements. Commissioner 
Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve Chapter 17 to revise 
the requirements for Adult Establishments and to permit 
tattoo and body piercing studios only in HM zoning 
district.  Chairman Etheridge seconded the motion.  Motion 
failed with Commissioners Aydlett, Gregory, Rorer, Nelms 
and Taylor voting no.   

Consideration of Concession License Agreement for Airport 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to table. Commissioner Taylor 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried.   

Consent Agenda: 

96



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   21 

1. Budget amendments 
2. Approval of Code Enforcement Violation Files 

Disposition 
3. Resolution East Carolina HIV/AIDS Grant 
4. Magette Well change order #1, Mainland Water 

Construction 
5. Crowder Construction change order #3, Mainland 

Water construction 
6. Hendrix-Barnhill CO1 & CO2, Mainland Water 
7. McKenzie Construction change order #2, Moyock 

Library Construction 
8. Amendment to The Design Collaborative agreement 

for Moyock Library 
9. Resolution to Declare Surplus Property for 

Disposal  
10. Resolution supporting the creation of an 

Insurance Commission 
11. Approval of Grant for Mosquito Control and 

Resolution designating County Manager to sign 
12. Approval of Job Descriptions in Tourism 

Department 
13. Approval of Building Inspection Records 

Disposition 
14. Approval of February 16, 2009, Minutes 
15. Application Public School Capital Building 

Fund 
16. Ordinance on County Boards 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
66868-516000  Repairs and Maintenance   $                    6,500    
66868-533800  Chemicals   $                    4,000    
66868-533200  Lab Tests     $                  6,500  
66868-545000  Contract Servics     $                  4,000  
       
     $                  10,500    $                10,500  
       

97



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   22 

Explanation: 
 

Southern Outher Banks Water System (66868) - To transfer funds for scheduled 
maintenance for the remainder of this year and for increased cost of chemicals. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Southern Outer Banks Water System Fund (66) - No change 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10540-557000  Refunds   $                       128    
10540-511000  Telephone & postage     $                     128  
       
     $                       128    $                     128  
       
Explanation: 
 

Inspections (10540) - To refund building permit fees collected in prior years due to 
calculation error. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
61818-516000  Repairs and Maintenance   $                  20,000    
61818-590003  Fire Hydrants     $                20,000  
       
     $                  20,000    $                20,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Mainland Water (61818) - To transfer funds for repairs to the road to the water wells 
at the airport. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10415-511000  Telephone & Postage   $                    2,100    
10415-561000  Professional Services     $                  2,100  
       
     $                    2,100    $                  2,100  
       

98



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   23 

Explanation: Legal (10415) - Transfer funds for postage for OLF information mailing. 
Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10511-545000  Contracted Services   $                  10,000    

10390-499900  
Appropriated Fund 
Balance   $                149,366    

10510-540000  Worker's Compensation     $                66,805  
10530-540000  Worker's Compensation     $                92,561  
       
     $                159,366    $              159,366  
       
Explanation: 
 

Sheriff (10510); Jail (10511); Emergency Medical Services (10530) - To adjust 
accounts to reflect decrease in amounts needed for FY 2008 Worker's Comp Audit. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Reduced by $149,366. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10510-532000  Supplies   $                  12,500    
10510-514000  Travel     $                  2,500  
10510-557600  Miscellaneous Information     $                  5,000  
10510-536000  Uniforms     $                  5,000  
       
     $                  12,500    $                12,500  
       
Explanation: 
 

Sheriff (10510) - To transfer funds to furnish additional space in Corolla and for 
operations for the remainder of this year. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

99



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   24 

50790-594500  Contract Services   $                  16,149    
50790-596100  Professional Services   $                  20,550    
50790-588000  Contingency     $                32,098  
50790-570000  Reimburseable Expenses     $                  4,601  
       
     $                  36,699    $                36,699  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Moyock Library Construction (10790) - To transfer funds for change order #2 for 
McKenzie construction for door card reader and for increase in professional 
services. 

Net Budget 
Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - No change. 
 
 
 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
55818-591001  600 GPM Deep Wells   $                  90,039    
55818-591003  Wells - Raw Water Line   $                    2,645    
55818-588004     Tanks - Contingency     $                  7,096  
55818-588003     Distribution System - Contingency   $                85,588  
       
     $                  92,684    $                92,684  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Mainland Water Construction (55818) - To transfer funds from contingencies for 
Magette change order #1, Crowder change order #2 and Hendrix-Barnhill change 
orders 1 & 2. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Mainland Water Construction Fund (55) - No change. 
 
 
Surplus Property Water Department, Pump, High Service Model 
4L12, Motor, electric 29 HP 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING CREATION 
OF AN INSURANCE COMMISSION 

 
 

WHEREAS, increasing homeowners, wind and hail and other 
property related insurance rates and deductibles are a 
major concern to all property owners within North Carolina 
and a particular concern to those who own property in 
coastal region of North Carolina; and 

100



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   25 

 
WHEREAS, currently decisions regarding increases or 
decreases in the rates and deductibles of Insurance in 
North Carolina rest solely with the Insurance Commissioner 
and the Department of Insurance; and 
 
WHEREAS the process, procedures and methods used by the 
Insurance Commissioner and the Department of Insurance in 
making such decisions currently provide the public with 
little to no transparency and very limited means of 
providing input or recourse for unfair and unjust decisions 
of the Insurance Commissioner and the Department of 
Insurance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners supports the legislative creation of an 
Insurance Commission tasked with providing fair and just 
insurance rates to all North Carolina residents in a manner 
that is open to the public and provides aggrieved persons 
sufficient means of recourse for unfair or unjust insurance 
rates and encourages all Currituck County and North 
Carolina resident, property owners, and visitors to contact 
their representatives in the North Carolina General 
Assembly to indicate support for such legislation. 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE III OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES TO PROHIBIT THE CONCURRENT MEMBERSHIP ON 

A COUNTY AUTHORITY, BOARD OR COMMISSION 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-76 a board 
of commissioners may change the composition and manner of 
selection of boards, commissions, and agencies, and may 
generally organize and reorganize the county government in 
order to promote orderly and efficient administration of 
county affairs; and 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-77 a board 
of commissioners may appoint advisory boards, committees, 
councils and agencies composed of qualified and interested 
county residents to study, interpret and develop community 
support and cooperation in activities conducted by or under 
the authority of the board of commissioners. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of 
Commissioners for the County of Currituck, North Carolina 
as follows: 
PART I.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North 
Carolina is amended by adding a new section to Chapter 2, 
Article III, Division 1 to read as follows 
Sec. 2-98.  Multiple Committee Appointments Prohibited. 

101



March 2, 2009, BOC Meeting   26 

 Other than a county commissioner, officer or employee 
serving ex officio, no person shall hold concurrently two 
or more appointments to a county authority, board or 
commission. 
PART II.  This ordinance shall apply to those persons 
holding two or more appointments to a county authority, 
board or commission on the date this ordinance is adopted 
at the completion of their current terms of appointment. 
 PART III.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Nelms requested the Board to give back $5,000 
of their salary to help with the county insurance for 
employees.  He also requested the Board exempt fees for 
building permits up to $150,000. 

County Manager’s Report 

No comments 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 
 
 

102


	Agenda
	Proclamation for Girl Scout Month
	Girl Scout Month

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-60 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 09-04 case analysis
	PB 09-04 supplemental information

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments

	John E Bassett, Inc CO#1, Corporate Hangar and Hangar Taxiway
	CO #1_Bassett

	Request for disposal of Financial records per record retention schedule
	Disposal of Financial records

	Approval of March 2, 2009, Minutes
	March 2 Minutes


